
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact Dan 
Kalley on 01733 296334 as soon as possible.

Did you know? All Peterborough City Council's meeting agendas are available 
online or via the modern.gov app. Help us achieve our environmental protection 
aspirations and view this agenda online instead of printing it. 

AB
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 30 JANUARY 2018
1.30 PM

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 19 December 2017 5 - 14

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 17/02105/HHFUL - Vine Cottage, Bainton Green Road, Ashton, 
Stamford.

15 - 24

5.2 17/01906/HHFUL - 11 Elmore Road, Netherton, Peterborough 
PE3 9PS.

25 - 34

5.3 17/02255/HHFUL - 40 Farleigh Fields, Orton Wistow, 
Peterborough PE2 6YB.

35 - 40

6. Quarterly Compliance Report 41 - 52

Public Document Pack



Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385

Committee Members:

Councillors: G Casey (Vice Chairman), L Serluca, C Harper (Chairman), Bull, P Hiller, J Stokes, 
S Martin, Clark, Iqbal, Bond and C Ash

Substitutes: Councillors: Bisby, Sylvester, N Sandford and B Saltmarsh

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Dan Kalley on telephone 01733 
296334 or by email – daniel.kalley@peterborough.gov.uk

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385


CASE OFFICERS:

Planning and Development Team: Nicholas Harding, Lee Collins, Paul Smith, Mike Roberts, 
Janet Maclennan, David Jolley, Louise Simmonds, Vicky 
Hurrell, Sundas Shaban, Amanda McSherry, Sam Falco, Matt 
Thomson, Michael Freeman, Jack Gandy, Carry Murphy, Joe 
Davies

Minerals and Waste: Theresa Nicholl, Alan Jones

Compliance: Nigel Barnes, Anthony Whittle, Karen Cole, Julie Robshaw

NOTES:

1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer 
or Head of Planning and/or Development Management Manager as soon as possible.

2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  
Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.  

3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 
implications for that policy, except where expressly stated.

4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 
specifically referred to in the report itself.

5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
received after their preparation.



This page is intentionally left blank



 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 
MEETING

HELD AT 1:30PM, ON
TUESDAY, 19 DECEMBER 2017

BOURGES/VIERSEN ROOM, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH
 

Committee Members Present: (Chairman) Harper, (Vice-Chair) Casey, Councillors Bull, 
Stokes, Clark, Martin A Iqbal, Saltmarsh and Hiller

Officers Present: Lee Collins, Development Management Manager
Amanda McSherry, Principal Development Management Officer
Simon Ireland, Principal Engineer, Highway Control
Dan Kalley, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Stephen Turnbull, Planning Solicitor

 
1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ash, Serluca and Bond

Councillor Saltmarsh substituted for Councillor Ash
 
2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
 

Councillor Bull declared a personal interest in item 5.1 by virtue of knowing the 
Chairman of the Sutton Parish Council through the local community group.

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor

No declarations of intention to make representation as Ward Councillor were received.
 

4.   MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 7 NOVEMBER 2017

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2017 were agreed as a true and 
accurate record. 

 
5.1 17/01765/FUL - LAND TO THE EAST OF MANOR FARM NENE WAY, SUTTON, 

PETERBOROUGH.
 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee received a report in relation to 
seeking planning permission for the 'demolition of farm buildings and erection of single 
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space'.
 
The proposed dwelling would be sited 50m from Nene Way site frontage and would 
utilise both existing vehicle access points creating an in and out access arrangement. 
The dwelling would stand at three and two storeys in height. The main dwelling would 
have a floor area of 16.9m x 16.9m and proposes to stand at 7.4m to eaves and 9.5m 

5



to ridge. The two storey element would have a floor area of 7m x 16.9m proposing to 
stand at 4.75m to eaves and 6.6m to ridge.
 
A detached one and a half storey triple garage with accommodation above is also 
proposed to the side of the property, with a floor area of 7.3m x 16m and proposes to 
stand at 2.7m to eaves and 5.5m to ridge.

The Principal Development Management Officer introduced the report and update 
report. The proposal would dominate the area and would erode the current manor 
house and the agricultural heritage of the village. Proximity to the conservation area 
would exacerbate the harm to the local area. 

Councillor Diane Lamb, Ward Councillor, addressed the Committee and responded to 
questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

● The applicants were born in local area and had been involved with a number 
of local businesses. The applicants had a strong desire to return to the village 
and enhance its appeal.

● The applicants were aware of previous planning history, however their wish to 
build one house instead of two was not overbearing.

● There had been numerous meetings and discussions with the planning 
department and alterations had been made where requested.

● The design and build of the property would be in keeping with other buildings 
in the village.

● The application would enhance the local area with the removal of the current 
outbuildings.

● The results of the consultation had shown that they have taken all aspects into 
account.

Peter Lee, Chairman of Sutton Parish Council, addressed the Committee and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

● The Parish Council supported the application. At present the eastern approach 
is spoilt by modern farm buildings and this application sought to bring character 
back to the village.

● Although substantial it was well set back on the site, therefore opening up a far 
more attractive view of the village.

● The views as people approached the village would be better and more 
appealing..

● The Parish Council welcomed the creation of the meadow/pasture area.
● The reasons for refusal were not clear. This application would architecturally 

improve the conservation area. 
● The proposed house was set back from the front of the plot and would not 

damage the character of the manor house opposite.
● Severed farm land had very little use for modern day times. Natural transition 

changed when this land was split up and now no longer influences planning 
decisions.

● This was an entirely appropriate development for the scale and size of the plot 
of land.

6



● Parish council normally defend no further developments, however the scheme 
was carefully designed. As the site needed improvement, small breach should 
be allowed.

● There were many other cases of other villages outside the village envelope 
being developed upon.

● Not a new form of development, Northborough manor is a similar development. 
● There will be other buildings between development and the village as you 

approach it.

John Dadge the Agent, addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

● Neighbours lived at Manor Farm, objected to previous applications. Never 
consulted by previous owners of the land. New owners have consulted and 
worked closely with their neighbours.

● The residents at Manor Farm needed to protect their own house, to which the 
applicants had taken into account.

● Driving into village from nene way the development would enhance the views.
● The original plan to create two large houses would’ve been damaging to the 

village.
● Area of land outside village boundary, half of the existing barn was already 

outside the village envelope.
● Completely fresh proposal, high standards of insulation. Tall breeze block wall 

replaced by stone wall.

The Planning Committee and Environmental Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included:

● Members were struggling to agree with the officers. Most members had seen 
this site, what was currently there was very grim. Can’t see how this 
development was a step back from previous applications.

● The application would sit extremely well on the plot. Property was to be set well 
back and not diminish the view of Manor Farm. Previous application for two 
houses was approved, however this was an even better proposal. Application 
would provide a lovely view of the old manor house from approach to the 
village.

● Garden area that building was proposed for was a better use of the lan than 
the current outbuildings.

● Owners of the Manor House had shown their support.
● Proposed building is very large, but was a good distance from listed building 

and was of good design. 
● Application had been considerably well thought out and consulted on by the 

owners.
● Parish councils support carried a lot of weight.
● There had been no objections made to this development and had the support 

of the village in total.

RESOLVED: 

The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to APPROVE the application. 
The Committee RESOLVED (Unanimously) to GRANT the planning permission 
subject to relevant conditions delegated to officers. 

7



REASON FOR THE DECISION:

Subject to the imposition of attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations. 

The application was not overbearing on the village envelope. The proposed 
developments size, mass, scale and proximity to the adjacent Sutton Conservation 
Area would preserve and enhance the setting of that Conservation Area. 

5.2 17/01432/FUL - THORNEY GOLF CLUB, ENGLISH DRIVE, THORNEY,   
PETERBOROUGH

 
The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee received a report in relation to 
planning permission to change the use of the site to leisure land to allow the siting of 
17no. holiday lodges and caravans.  The use of land for the siting of such units would 
fall within Class C3 (residential dwellings) of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) albeit the lodges/caravans are intended for 
holiday/leisure use and it is on this basis that the proposal has been considered (i.e. 
not unrestricted residential use).  

The proposal also includes associated hardstanding, internal roads and the widening 
of the existing vehicular access onto English Drove.

The Development Management Manager introduced the report and update report. 
Policy PP18 had been applied to be consistent with the rural location which it would 
be in. Issues of archaeology and drainage were addressed through use of lodges. 
Although the proposal complied with PP18. The flood risk was in zone 3 which was 
the highest level of flooding. The applicant had demonstrated part of the sequential 
test, however the wider community benefits outweighing the flood risks, had not been 
demonstrated adequately. 

John Bartlett, Parish Councillor for Thorney the Applicant addressed the Committee 
and responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted 
included:

● On two occasions the Parish Council had submitted comments, based on the 
comments in the report, it was agreed that the Parish Council endorsed the 
council’s refusal of the application.

● If the application was successful the Parish Council would consider taking legal 
action.

Ian Glading addressed the Committee and responded to questions from Members. In 
summary the key points highlighted included:

● It was believed that the proposed lodges would be used for permanent use as 
the applicant’s website had been offering them for sale 365 days a year. 

● The website had been advertising the lodges since March 2017.
● There was a 60 mph speed limit on the road approaching the proposed 

development. In addition there had recently been a fatality near the site.
● Lodge residents would be unaware of the danger of not knowing the road and 

there was a higher likelihood of there being an accident.
● A previous, similar, application for a museum was refused.

8



● Support the golf course remaining, however there was no support for the sale 
of lodges.

● New website launched didn't offer explanation that the course was under new 
ownership. 

● The applicant needed to explain how rental income was to subsidise the 
running of the golf course.

● Need to demonstrate long term future for golf. New plan should be submitted.

Neil Morgan, the applicant, addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

● Officers had been presented with research from local lodges which were part 
of golf clubs. 

● Other golf courses were able to charge reasonable rates and make an income 
from their lodges.

● Although other lodges were unable to provide detailed financial spreadsheets 
they had during discussions outlined the financial gain of having lodges at their 
golf clubs..

● The problem with Thorney Golf Club was that there were no finite figures, any 
figures given would be speculative and would only be based on how consumers 
would view the site.

● There were numerous factors that were not able to be predicted.
● Planning Officers had been given as much detail as possible.
● They were the experts in this field, although there was no formal business plan 

the figures provided would be enough for banks to grant business loans.
● There were a number of economic benefits, it was predicted that if the lodges 

sell the golf club would receive a £600k injection into the business from this 
sale. 

● Had given accurate position to best of ability. Increased revenue to restaurant 
and shop.

● Need lodges to sustain golf course, not long term viable without supplementary 
income. Currently running at a loss.

● Flooding and soakaway, there is no flood risk and environmental agency has 
agreed that there is no flood risk.

● Only one incident of flooding in history in 1947, but this was only 2 inches. 
Flooding agency had said in writing that there is no flood risk. 

● There was a proven business model so know there was a demand for this.
● Was a failing golf course and people would buy the lodges as an investment 

and this would impact positively on the local community.
● Thorney had been running at a substantial loss over the past year.
● 17 lodges would provide income and capital at the level that it needs to run at.
● There was a lot interest in the lodges being bought and the local course with a 

similar scheme were sold out.
● All figures given were in the planning statement, only amendment was the 

projected income, which had now increased to £475 p/w. 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included:

● Robust business plan was the sticking point From what had been provided 
there was enough information to show the projected income raised by the sale 
of the lodges.

● It was deemed acceptable that it was reasonable to assume from the 
information provided that a business model was in place for the development.

9



● The purpose was to build a holiday letting plan and give a financial boost to the 
golf course. 

● It was acceptable that the relevant information from the plan and from 
questioning that there was enough information and data provided to see how 
the proposal would work.

● Through the use of conditions there can be put in place ways to monitor the 
situation on site to ensure that people were not living in the lodges all year 
round.

● The applicants had provided everything that was needed to determine the 
viability of the project.

RESOLVED: 

The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to APPROVE the application. 
The Committee RESOLVED (8 in favour, 1 against) to GRANT the planning 
permission subject to relevant conditions being delegated to officers.

REASONS FOR THE DECISION:

Subject to the imposition of attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations. 

The application adequately demonstrates that the development proposed will support 
and sustain the existing and well-established Thorney Golf Club.  Accordingly, it has 
been demonstrated that the proposal would result in an overriding wider sustainability 
benefit to the community that would outweigh the flood risks and the proposal  meets 
the requirements of the exceptions test.  On this basis, the proposal is satisfied in 
terms of Policy CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and paragraphs 
102 and 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

5.3 17/01833/FUL - 22 TOPHAM CRESCENT, THORNEY, PETERBOROUGH.
 

The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee received a report in relation to 
seeking approval for the erection of a two bedroom bungalow with independent access 
and parking provision for at least 2 vehicles.
 
The red outline of the application site has increased since the initial submission and 
the garage has been deleted.  Re-consultation had been undertaken.
    
The Principal Development Management Officer introduced the report and update 
report.

Jim and Patricia Caudle, addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

● The bungalow had a generous frontage, a small garden to the rear on the left 
and a large side garden to the right. The large side garden had always been 
screened from view by a brick wall between the bungalow and the right hand 
boundary with No 24 until it was cut through the wall and demolished the left 
part of it this year in order to gain access to clear the land behind.

● There had been evidence that the area had been infested by vermin. It then 
took many weeks of work to clear the outbuildings. 

10



● There had been no objections raised by the highways department to the 
proposals

● There had been no objections from any neighbours. 
● The property was now locked with too much land that will be very difficult to 

sell. 
● The applicant wished to build another high quality small bungalow and 

provide a much needed home for another retired couple which would be in 
line with government policy. 

● Almost all the buildings nearby are bungalows occupied mostly by retired 
couples.

● The bungalow itself was in a very poor state having had virtually no work done 
since it was built.

● Welcomed any further suggestions from planning officers, especially in relation 
to the fences at the front of the property.

 
The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included:

● Difficult with the house was that it overlooked properties to the front and side. 
In order to overcome boundary fence, if lowered the fence it would be in 
keeping with the street scene, however the property would then overlook 
neighbouring properties.

● Appreciate traffic concerns, however they are looking to build a detached 
house, in quiet residential road of bungalows. 

● Wouldn’t be out of keeping with the local area.
● The wall at the front would be better in keeping with the local area by having a 

smaller wall.

The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and 
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to APPROVE the application.
The Committee RESOLVED (Unanimously) to GRANT the planning permission 
subject to relevant conditions being delegated to officers.

REASONS FOR THE DECISION:

Subject to the imposition of attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having 
been assessed in the light of all material considerations. In addition the Lower 
boundary treatment/wall to frontage is to be secured by condition.

The positioning of the dwelling with its close relationship with the host dwelling at 
number 22 Topham Crescent and to the neighbouring property at no. 24 Topham 
Crescent, including the erection of a 1.8m high fence, would not result in a contrived 
development within this location.  Hence the proposal would be conform to policy CS16 
of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD. 

5.4 17/01785/FUL - LAZYACRE WERRINGTON BRIDGE ROAD, MILKING NOOK, 
PETERBOROUGH.

 
The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee received a report in relation to 
The application is a revised scheme following two former refusals for a day room ref.  
16/00348/FUL (also dismissed at appeal) and ref. 15/00971/FUL (refused by members 
of the Planning and Environmental Protection Committee on 27.10.2015).

11



 
The application under consideration is as follows:
 
·             Addition of 4 pitches/caravans (8 in total)
·         Erection of a day room.  The building would have a square footprint 9.6m x 9.9m 

with a hipped roof to a maximum height of 4m
 

The proposal is for an increase in the number of caravans for one extended family to 
cater for the family’s children and grandchildren and comprises an increase in the 
overall site area.  
  
The Development Management Manager introduced the report and update report.

Barry Nicholls, the agent, addressed the Committee and responded to questions from 
Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

● Worked with planning officers to work towards a solution for the family on this 
site.

● Used inspector’s comments to justify the dayroom and reduce impact on the 
local area.

● Family are known and a part of the community and the local community are 
very supportive of the family and this development.

● Want the utility room to remain and not be demolished. However would accept 
officers recommendation to demolish the utility room.

 
The Planning and Environmental Protection Committee debated the report and in 
summary, key points raised and responses to questions included:

● In officers view not acceptable to have both, previous decisions refusing the 
keeping of the additional dwelling. 

● Officers had taken a pragmatic view to this application and not keeping the old 
utility block.

● The residents would use their caravans primarily instead of any additional day 
unit

● Local Parish Councils objections seem vague and haven’t come to explain 
objections.

 
The Planning Environment Protection Committee considered the report and
representations. A motion was proposed and seconded to GRANT the application. The 
Committee RESOLVED (Unanimous) to GRANT planning permission.

REASONS FOR THE DECISION
 

Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable 
having been assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing 
against relevant policies of the development plan and specifically:

 
·        This is an existing Gypsy and Traveller site and therefore the principle of 

development is already established;
·        The increase in number of pitches/caravans from 4 to 8 would not materially 

change the character of the site;
·        The consent would be personal to the applicant due to the need of additional 

caravans for his extended family;

12



·        The dayroom would not have an independent residential use; 
·        The site is substantially enclosed by hedgerow and boundary fencing and 

therefore it would be satisfactorily screened from views outside of the site;
·        The proposed day room would be visible above the boundary, however, such 

views would not unduly impact on the character and appearance of the open 
countryside.

·        The proposal would not result in any unacceptable impact on the adjacent 
highway; and

·        The site would not adversely impact on the amenity of nearby residents.
 

Hence the proposal accords with policies CS9 and CS20 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD and policies PP2, PP3 and PP12 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD.

                                                                                                                              Chairman
1.30pm – 4.18pm

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



Planning and EP Committee 30 January 2018                                                         ITEM 5.1

Application Ref: 17/02105/HHFUL 

Proposal: Two storey extension to include garage, carers room and extended 
bathroom facilities

Site: Vine Cottage, Bainton Green Road, Ashton, Stamford
Applicant: Mr & Mrs J Wreford

Agent: Mr Mark Benns
Paul Bancroft Architects

Referred by: Councillor Over

Reasons: 1) There are significant personal circumstances involved.

2) The application involves an extension but limited changes in the 
building which is presently there.

3) There is significant village support for the individuals concerned but 
recognition that this should be a ‘one-off’ approval due to the particular 
personal circumstances of the applicant and not seen as a precedent for 
other developments.

Site visit: 23.11.2017

Case officer: Mr Jack Gandy
Telephone No. 01733 452595
E-Mail: jack.gandy@peterborough.gov.uk

Recommendation: REFUSAL  

1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal

Site and Surroundings
The application site comprises a detached dwelling located within the Special Character Area of 
Ashton. The site is not located within, or adjacent to, a Conservation Area. The dwelling has 
previously been extended forward of the front elevation with regards to the existing timber garage, 
which was granted permission under planning application 06/00046/FUL. The front elevation of the 
original dwelling is set back from the back edge of the highway by approximately 16 metres. The 
entrance to the site is bordered by a beech hedge with a willow tree and a hazel tree either side of 
the entrance. The surrounding area is predominantly residential, with dwellings in detached form.

Proposal
Permission is sought for construction of a 1.5 storey extension to the front of the dwelling, to 
replace the existing garage structure.

The proposal would project from the studio room (to be converted to a bedroom) by approximately 
9.3 metres in depth and would measure 7.2 metres in width. 

A dual-pitched roof is proposed, with the proposed ridge to measure 6.1 metres high from ground 
level. The proposed eave lines would be different however, with the north-west facing eaves to 
measure 3.7 metres high from ground and the proposed south-east facing eaves would measure 
2.6 metres high from ground level.

17



The space created would accommodate a disabled bedroom, bathroom and garage at ground floor 
level, followed by carer accommodation at first floor level which is full self-contained (save for a 
shared entrance and access to the rest of the house). Two roof dormers are proposed to the north-
west facing roof elevation and two rooflights are proposed to the south-facing roof elevation.

2 Planning History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
P0022/79 Erection of detached house and double 

garage (approval of reserved matters)
Permitted 09/02/1979

06/00046/FUL Single storey front extension and rear 
conservatory

Permitted 28/02/2006

3 Planning Policy

Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

Equality Act 2010

Given the personal circumstances of the applicant’s family, regard must be had to the positive 
equality duties of Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. More specifically, this means that due 
regard must be had to the need to advance equality of opportunity in terms of removing or 
minimising disadvantages and meeting their needs.

This does not mean that planning applications that relate to meeting the health needs of a person 
should always be approved. A balanced approach must be taken. If the harm arising from the 
development outweighs the benefits associated with meeting the needs of the person, then the 
application may be refused planning permission.

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011)

CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm 
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.

CS17 - The Historic Environment 
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance.

Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012)

SA19 - Special Character Areas 
To preserve the character of Wothorpe, Thorpe Road and Ashton proposals will be assessed 
against specific criteria in respect of garden sub-division, extensions and alterations, design 
including site analysis and trees. Proposals for Wothorpe will also be considered against an 
additional criterion in respect of landscape character.

Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012)

PP02 - Design Quality 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity.

18



PP03 - Impacts of New Development 
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder.

PP13 - Parking Standards 
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards.

PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development 
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity.

PP17 - Heritage Assets 
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits.

PP19 - Habitats and Species of Principal Importance 
Permission will not be granted for development which would cause demonstrable harm to a habitat 
or species unless the need for, and benefits of it, outweigh the harm.  Development likely to have 
an impact should include measures to maintain and, if possible, enhance the status of the habitat 
or species.

Peterborough Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD (2011)

All planning applications for development in Bainton and Aston will be tested against General 
Village Policies (Section 3) within the SPD for Bainton and Ashton, as well as wider Peterborough-
wide planning policies, in order to determine whether such development proposals should be 
granted permission.

Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Proposed Submission Draft)
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation 
on this Proposed Submission version of the Local Plan will take place during January and February 
2018 after which the responses will be reviewed ahead of submission to the Secretary of State. 

This plan was approved Cabinet for consultation on 13 December 2017. It is, therefore, classified 
as an 'emerging plan'. Paragraph 216 of the National Planning states that decision makers may 
give weight to relevant policies in an emerging plan according to:-

- the stage of the Plan (the more advanced the plan, the more weight which can be given)
- the extent to which there are unresolved objections to the policies 
- the degree of consistency between emerging polices and the framework.

The policies can be used alongside adopted policies in the decision making progress, especially 
where the plan contains new polices. The amount of weight to be given to the emerging plan 
policies is a matter for the decision maker. At the final stage the weight to be given to the emerging 
plan is more substantial than at the earlier stages although the 'starting point' for decision making 
remains the adopted Local Plan.

4 Consultations/Representations

PCC Tree Officer (24.11.17)
There is no objection to the proposal. Request the following tree protection condition as no tree 
removals are required: 
 

19



CONDITION 1
Prior and throughout the duration of the development, the applicants shall implement the 
recommendations, principles and methodologies as contained within the BS 5837 Arboricultural 
Report produced by John Wilcockson Arboricultural Consultant dated 23 October 2017.

Tree protection fencing and ground protection shall be erected according to the specifications and 
locations illustrated on the Tree Protection Plan, within the associated report thereby creating a 
Construction exclusion Zone. Signs will be placed and retained on the tree protective fencing 
outlining its importance and emphasising that it is not to be moved, nor the area entered into until 
the end of development.

Any changes to the above must be requested in writing and granted by the LPA prior to them being 
undertaken.
  
REASON: In order to protect and safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy 
CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and PP16 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

PCC Wildlife Officer (23.11.17)
The proposed development is located within Ashton Meadows and Hedges County Wildlife Site, 
however I consider that this proposal is unlikely to have an impact upon the features for which this 
site has been designated a County Wildlife Site.

I have no objection to the proposal.

PCC Conservation Officer (29.11.17)
In my opinion, this extension will not preserve the positive attributes that Ashton was designated a 
Special Character Area for.  

There are clearly reasons why this extension is being proposed. Opportunities should be taken to 
reduce the scale and projection of this proposal. Possibly by way of deleting the garage provision, 
allowing for a more subservient structure.

GeoPeterborough (Sites Of Interest) 
No comments received

Bainton & Ashton Parish Council (04.12.17)
Parish Council has no objections.

Although the proposed building will be higher than the present garage and carport, and therefore 
more visible from the road, Parish Council do not consider it will be a problem as far as light is 
concerned and the design seems to be in keeping with the present house. The arborial report 
implies that the two trees should not be affected.

Our only query is that at present the house has an artificial slate roof, but the proposed roof 
covering for the extension is clay pantile. However, there are other houses in Ashton with this 
same combination (house with slate, garage with clay pantile), so we consider it will be in keeping.

The Wildlife Trusts (Cambridgeshire) (22.11.17)
The site is within Ashton Meadows and County Wildlife Site (CWS), selected for its network of 
mature hedgerows and for its pollard willows. The proposed works would not affect the features of 
interest of the CWS. The trees on-site are of some ecological interest, but as the arboricultural 
report concludes, the proposals would not significantly change existing conditions with respect to 
these trees. The Wildlife Trust therefore has no objection to this application.

20



Local Residents/Interested Parties 

Initial consultations: 3
Total number of responses: 3
Total number of objections: 0
Total number in support: 3

Two letters of representation have been received from nearby residents in support of the 
application. 

A further letter of support was also received by Councillor Over, who has called the application 
into Planning Committee for the following reasons:

- There are significant personal circumstances involved.

- The application involves an extension but limited changes in the building which is 
presently there.

- There is significant village support for the individuals concerned but recognition that this 
should be a 'one-off' approval due to the particular personal circumstances of the 
applicant and not seen as a precedent for other developments.

5 Assessment of the planning issues

The main considerations are:

- Design and impact to the character and appearance of the site and the Special      
Character Area

- Neighbour amenity
- Impact to trees
- Ecology
- Parking provision

a) Design and impact to the character and appearance of the site and the Special Character 
Area

The application site is located within the Ashton Special Character Area. Special Character Areas 
are not Conservation Areas and as such, are not covered by Section 72(1) of the Town and 
Country Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended). However, 
given their special character status, special regard is paid to ensure that the character of the 
surrounding Special Character Area would not be unacceptably affected by development.

Special Character Areas are marked by their low-density and generally large dwellings set within 
spacious grounds. It is important that any development is carefully guided in order to protect each 
Area's character. Any new development must enhance the character and appearance of the Area. 
It must respect the scale, massing, depth, materials and spacing of established properties, 
according to Policy SA19 of the Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012).  

The Design and Development in Selected Villages SPD (2011) details particular principles to be 
accounted for when assessing development proposals within Ashton. Extensions are required to 
be “highly sympathetic” to the existing dwelling, both in the use of materials and design to preserve 
dwelling character (paragraph B&A 1). Paragraph B&A 2 states that alterations to existing 
properties should respect the character of the area by taking reference to density, orientation to 
and placement besides roads, the spacing between properties and property boundaries. 

21



Whilst the proposed extension would be built in timber to match the existing garage, it is 
considered that the scale, depth and design of the proposal does not respect the character and 
appearance of the property on site and dwellings within the surrounding area.

Officers consider that the increased depth to 9.3 metres (from 5.2 metres), as well as the increase 
in height to 6.1 metres (from 4.8 metres) to accommodate the first floor, would cause the proposal 
to be overly dominant against the original property. The proposal would result in large frontal 
massing that would exceed the proportions of the existing dwelling. Such massing, along with the 
6.1 metre height proposed, would appear prominent in a location where dwellings are subservient 
to plot size. The works would reduce the distance separating the property from the highway, thus 
this increases the prominence of the proposal to the surrounding area. Whilst the willow tree and 
hedge would provide some form of cover against the street-facing gable, this is not considered 
sufficient to limit the prominence of the proposal to the surrounding street scene.

The Conservation Officer states that the neighbouring property to the south, Devonshire Cottage, 
has a detached garage extension approved under 14/01998/HHFUL that is forward of the front 
elevation. Whilst the size and scale of this neighbouring extension is much reduced compared to 
the extension proposed under this application, the Conservation Officer states the neighbouring 
extension previously approved has had a negative impact upon the immediate setting of the area 
as it is more prominent than it ought to be. The structure proposed under this application is much 
larger, taller and would also project closer to the highway than that approved at Devonshire 
Cottage. Officers consider that the proposal would be a dominant feature within the surrounding 
area, which the Conservation Officer considers would be of detriment to the positive attributes of 
Ashton's Special Character Area.

Further to site meetings and discussions with the agent, Conservation and Planning have advised 
on reducing the depth of the extension by half, thus removing the garage and one roof dormer, but 
would retain the planned entrance, bedroom, bathroom layout proposed elsewhere in the dwelling. 
However, this has been rebutted by the agent, stating that the carer accommodation is required to 
be located near to the disabled rooms. The agent has also informed that the size of the proposed 
garage is needed to allow storage of equipment relating to the needs of the occupiers.

Officers appreciate that there are personal circumstances associated with the proposal to fulfil the 
requirements of the occupiers. Under such circumstances, Officers may allow for some provision of 
increased development of more-than-usual proportions to accommodate care needs. However, it is 
considered that the scale of development proposed within the Special Character Area and the 
harm that would be created would overly exceed this threshold. 

In light of the above, given the size, scale, prominence, massing of the proposal and its 
unacceptable impact to the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area, 
Officers do not consider the proposal to be in accordance with Policies CS16 and CS17 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and PP17 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).

b) Neighbour amenity

There are three properties that are nearest to the boundaries of the application site: Hawthorn 
Farm to the north, Grossmiths Cottage to the east and Devonshire Cottage to the south.

There would be approximately 20 metres of separation between the east-facing elevation of the 
proposal and the front elevation of Grossmiths Cottage, with the public highway situated between. 
Given this distance, it is not considered that the proposal would cause unacceptable levels of 
overshadowing or overbearing to this neighbour. In addition, no windows are proposed to this east-
facing side elevation, which allows the privacy of this neighbour to be safeguarded.

22



Hawthorn Farm is located to the north of Vine Cottage. There would be approximately 55 metres 
between the north-facing elevation of the proposal and the south-facing elevation of Hawthorn 
Farm. The distance alone is considered by Officers to be sufficient to avoid adverse levels of 
shadowing and overbearing. With regards to the proposed dormers, some views would be 
provided into the neighbouring garden. However, this view would be limited as a result of the trees 
to the neighbouring site and the boundary hedge. Furthermore, as a result of the distance, it is 
considered that there would be no clear view to the south-facing elevation of Hawthorn Farm.

Finally, Devonshire Cottage is the neighbour south of the application site, as well as the neighbour 
closest to the proposed development. The distance between the shared boundary and the south-
facing elevation of the existing garage would remain the same for the proposed garage, albeit the 
proposed garage is much larger. The proposal would be further forward than the front elevation of 
Devonshire Cottage. 

Devonshire Cottage is approximately 3.7 metres south of the boundary line between the two 
properties. As such, no harmful levels of shadowing would occur to this neighbour.  One window is 
proposed to the south-facing elevation of the extension. This window would provide an opening for 
light to the disabled bathroom. Providing that the window is obscurely-glazed, the amenity of both 
the occupier and the neighbours to the south would be protected.

Having assessed the impacts to the neighbours nearest to the application site, Officers consider 
that the proposal is in accordance with Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD 
(2012).

c) Impact to trees

The Tree Officer has raised no objection to the proposal. There are no trees protected by Tree 
Preservation Orders (TPOs) with the immediate vicinity. There are also no wider tree protections 
due to the site not being located within a Conservation Area. 

An arboricultural report has been submitted alongside the proposed plans, which identifies two 
trees onsite that require future protection. The report outlines the impact of the proposal on the 
trees which appears to be relatively minor. However, the methodologies outlined must be followed 
to ensure the trees are not unintentionally damaged. As such, the Tree Officer has recommends 
that if the application was recommended for approval, that compliance with this report is 
conditioned. Officers consider that the proposal is in accordance with Policy PP16 of the 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

d) Ecology

The application site is located within 'Ashton Meadows and Hedges' County Wildlife Site. Given the 
works proposed, the PCC Wildlife Officer does not consider that the proposed extension would 
have an adverse impact upon the features within the County Wildlife Site. As such, the Officer 
raises no objection to the proposed development. This view is also shared with the Wildlife Trust, 
as stated in Section 4.

On the basis of the above, Officers consider that the proposed development would not result in 
adverse harm to the proposal is considered to accord with Policy PP19 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).

e) Parking provision

The property currently has four bedrooms. The proposed extension would contribute a further to a 
further two bedrooms to the property, increase the overall number of bedrooms to six. Parking 
standards state that for properties with four bedrooms, these should be served by two parking 
spaces.

23



Under adopted policy in parking standards, there is no increase in requirement for any additional 
car parking spaces when increasing from four to six bedrooms. In addition, it is considered the 
existing gravel surfacing to the front of the property, would be able to accommodate more than two 
vehicles on site. As such, Officers consider that the proposal is considered to accord with Policy 
PP13 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).

6 Conclusions

The proposal is unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material considerations, 
including weighing against relevant planning policies of the development plan and for the specific 
reasons given below (Section 7 ‘Recommendation’). 

With regards to the Equality Act 2010, it is considered that the adverse harm that would arise from 
the proposed development would outweigh the benefits associated with meeting the needs of the 
applicants.

7 Recommendation

The case officer recommends that Planning Permission is REFUSED for the following reason:

R 1 The proposed extension, by virtue of its size, massing and prominence would have an 
unacceptable adverse impact upon the character and visual appearance of the site and the 
surrounding Special Character Area. The proposal would result in a 1.5 storey extension 
that is not to scale with the proportions of the existing property and one that would be built 
too close to the east-most boundary of the property that is much further forward than the 
property's building line. The proposal would appear adversely prominent on site and within 
the surrounding area as a result of its position, height and massing. The proposal is 
considered to be incongruous to existing character and appearance of the site and the 
surrounding area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies CS16 and CS17 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP2 and PP17 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).

24



25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



Planning and EP Committee 30 January 2018                                                             ITEM 2
 
Application Ref:
 

17/01906/HHFUL  

Proposal:

 

 Proposed two storey side extension and part two storey and single 
storey rear extensions 

Site: 11 Elmore Road, Netherton, Peterborough, PE3 9PS 
Applicant:  Mr Y Sahir 

 
Agent: Mr N P Branston 

Branston Assoc. 
Referred by: Cllr S Smith 
Reason: The impact of the extensions upon the amenities of the occupiers of no.9 

Elmore Road 
Site visit:
 

 17.10.2017 

Case officer:  Mr M Roberts 
Telephone No.  01733 454410 
E-Mail:
 

 mike.roberts@peterborough.gov.uk 

Recommendation:  GRANT subject to relevant conditions  
 
 
 
1  Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
The site and surrounding area 
 
The property comprises of a 3 bed detached dwelling set in a short row of detached dwellings that 
are staggered from one another. The row of dwellings is located on the east side of Elmore Road. 
The application dwelling, no.11 Elmore Road, has its front elevation set forward of the dwelling 
immediately to the south i.e. no.9 Elmore Road and set rearwards of the front elevation of no. 13. 
The rear elevation of no.11 is set forwards of the rear elevation of no.9 by 3.6m. The rear elevation 
of no.11 is set rearwards from the 2 storey rear elevation of no.13.  However no.13 has had a 
single storey rear extension added that is nearly in alignment with the rear elevation of no.11. The 
driveways of no.9 and no.11 adjoin one another with a pair of garages set to the rear of both 
dwellings. Both of the driveways are narrow. The rear garden areas of nos.9, 11 and 13 are wide 
and deep and generally spacious. 
 
The driveway to the front elevation of the dwelling of no.11 could accommodate 2 vehicles. 
 
The Proposal  
 
The proposals have been amended. The revised designs of the extensions are to comprise:-  
 

 
 
 

A two storey side extension and single storey front extension 1.

1 
 

27



 
Currently a small porch sits forwards of the front of the house and part of the proposal is to extend 
the lounge forward so it matches the depth of the porch. There is to be a store to the forward most 
part of the ground floor elevation and a new bathroom to the rear. There will be a garage door in 
the front elevation of this extension. The first floor is to comprise an additional bedroom with a new 
bathroom to its rear. The flank walls of this side extension will abut close to the boundary that the 
property shares with no.9 Elmore Road. No windows are being proposed in the flank wall of this 
extension. The applicant has advised that the additional bedrooms are for his existing family living 
at the property. 
 
 A part single storey/two storey rear extension  
 
This extension is to project rearwards to a total depth of 5m at ground level. The rear elevation of 
the two-storey rear extension to no.11 would align with the rear elevation of no.9 i.e. extending 
3.4m from the rear of the existing dwelling. The south facing flank wall of this rear extension would 
be 3.9m from the north facing flank elevation of no.9. 
 
The north facing single storey and two storey flank elevations of the extension would be 3m from 
the shared boundary with no.13. The rear extension will have a kitchen and lounge on the ground 
floor and two bedrooms on the first floor.  
 
The agent has confirmed that the garage, attached to the garage of no.9, is to be removed 
 
2  Planning History 
 
No relevant planning history 
 
3  Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
PP03 - Impacts of New Development  
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 

2 
 

28



 
 
PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety. 
 
PP13 - Parking Standards  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made in 
accordance with standards. 
 
Peterborough Local Plan 2016 to 2036 (Proposed Submission Draft) 
This document sets out the planning policies against which development will be assessed. It will 
bring together all the current Development Plan Documents into a single document. Consultation 
on this Proposed Submission version of the Local Plan will take place during January and February 
2018 after which the responses will be reviewed ahead of submission to the Secretary of State.  
 
This plan was approved by Cabinet for consultation on 13 December 2017. It is, therefore, 
classified as an 'emerging plan'. Paragraph 216 of the National Planning states that decision 
makers may give weight to relevant policies in an emerging plan according to:- 
 

 
The policies can be used alongside adopted policies in the decision making progress, especially 
where the plan contains new policies. The amount of weight to be given to the emerging plan 
policies is a matter for the decision maker. At the final stage the weight to be given to the emerging 
plan is more substantial than at the earlier stages although the 'starting point' for decision making 
remains the adopted Local Plan. 
  
4  Consultations/Representations 
 
Highways Officer  
No objections  
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 7 
Total number of responses: 2 Total 
number of objections: 1 
Total number in support: 0 
 
There have been objections from the occupiers of no.9 Elmore Road on the following grounds: 
 

 

the stage of the Plan (the more advanced the plan, the more weight which can be 
given).

●

the extent to which there are unresolved objections to the policies.●
the degree of consistency between emerging policies and the framework. ●

The extension still cuts in half the present distance between our properties. 1.

While the new gable wall and apex roof boundary structure has reduced in size it still provides a 
substantial, for us unacceptable, depressing, oppressive, high dwelling wall. 

2.

3 
 

29



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The residents of no.20 Elmore Road have objected on the grounds that the extension would 
increase the potential for more vehicles to be associated with the dwelling. There is concern that 
they cannot park all their vehicles with the curtilage of the dwelling. Street parking is an issue in the 
immediate locality due to hospital parking and school parking. 
 
5  Assessment of the planning issues 
 
Planning Issues 
 
The impact of the two storey side extension upon the general street scene and the appearance of 
the existing dwelling 
 
This extension would be visible solely from south and west vantage points. It has been designed to 
give a degree of subservience to the dwelling. The design includes a set back of the front elevation 
of the dwelling. As a result it is considered that this extension would not dominate the dwelling nor 
detract from the visual amenities afforded by the character of the residential development. Due to 
the stagger of the row of dwellings the potential for an adverse terracing effect is not expected due 
also to the set back of the front elevation of no.9.  

The point has been made that our drive is more or less south facing, the implication being that 
light will not be affected too much.   On a sunny or bright day this may be true.  But on a dull 
cloudy day, and during the night, light radiates from all directions including the reflections of 
street lights from the clouds.  We believe the light reaching our property will really be reduced 
because of the proposed new structure. Our view skyward from our kitchen door, driveway and 
nearby garden will be dismissed and have an overbearing and very depressing impact on us. 

3.

The revised plan continues to have our driveway excavated to re-route pipes.  We refuse 
permission to excavate our driveway.  Officer comment – This is not a matter that can be 
considered by the Committee. 

4.

Permission from us to excavate, undermine, access or overhang our property including the 
digging of any foundations or similar, the erection of scaffolding etc is refused.  Officer comment 
– This is not a matter that can be considered by the Committee. 

5.

Our neighbour's and we have shared garage structure which will be demolished.  We are old and 
not wealthy people, we cannot deal with the prospect of needing to instigate proceedings against 
our neighbour if his builders damage our garage and or do not make good our remaining 
structure. Officer comment – This is not a matter that can be considered by the Committee. 

6.

It seems inevitable that the increase in bedrooms will result in increased noise from a bigger 
household and provide additional pressures on resources that this area was not designed for. 
Officer comment – The additional bedrooms are required for the children of the family. 

7.

The revised plan has reduced the size of the extension but it remains not in keeping with 
surrounding properties. 

8.

Our driveway nearby, kitchen door, landing window and nearby garden will be overshadowed 
and negatively dominated by the new enlarged / longer and closer side structure.  

9.

4 
 

30



 
 
 
 
Residential Amenity 
 

 
The proposed extensions are to the north of no.9 so there would be no loss of sunlight into the 
dwelling of no.9 or the rear garden area. The difference in daylight available to the dwelling will be 
minimal and has been improved by the siting of the rear extension being further away from no.9 
than originally proposed. There is a window in the north facing elevation of no.9 but the set back of 
the extension would be adequate not to reduce light levels to the landing that the window serves. 
 

 
The side extension would be barely visible from within the dwelling of no.9. The two storey rear 
elevation of the extension will not project past the rear elevation of no.9 and is to be set away from 
the patio area near to the dwelling of no.9. Whilst the extension would be visible from the rear 
garden of no.9 the extensions have been designed to minimise any potential for adverse 
overbearing impacts 
 

 
There are to be no windows to be located within either the ground or first floors of the flank wall of 
the extension facing towards no.9 Elmore Road. There is a kitchen door however in the south wall 
of the extension. This would face directly onto the north facing elevation of no.9. To prevent direct 
overlooking into the rear garden area of no.9 Elmore Road it would be necessary to include a 
restrictive condition to ensure that no windows are inserted in the flank elevation of the extensions 
at a future date other than those that would have to be approved by the Authority. 
 
There are two windows in the first floor rear elevation of the extension to provide light to both of the 
proposed bedrooms. These windows face down the garden of no.11 and views from these windows 
will not intrude upon the privacy that is afforded to the occupiers of no.9 close to the rear of their 
dwelling. 
 

 
It is considered that the north facing flank wall of the extension, being set in from the boundary that 
no.13 shares with no.11, the reduction in the depth of the first floor aspect of the extension and the 
presence of a significantly sized single storey rear extension to no.13 would serve to reduce the 
potential for the rear extension to give rise to overbearing and overshadowing impacts. Further 
no.13 is afforded a wide and deep rear garden which comprises space to mitigate against the 
presence of the extension. The garden and patio area would still retain good provisions of both 
sunlight and daylight. There will be no windows in the north elevation of the proposed rear 
extension other than a secondary window in the ground floor elevation to serve the proposed 
lounge. This window, due to land levels, may have the potential to permit overlooking to the rear of 
no.13. 
 
However there is a new window being inserted into the existing north elevation of no.11 to provide 

The impact of the extensions upon daylight and sunlight of no.9 Elmore Road. 1.

The physical impact of the extensions upon no.9 Elmore Road 2.

The privacy of no.9 Elmore Road 3.

The impact of the rear extension upon the amenities of the occupiers of no.13 Elmore Road. 4.

5 
 

31



light into a newly created bedroom. This however will need to be part obscure glazed to a height of 
1.7m above floor level to reduce the potential for overlooking into the rear garden area close to the 
rear elevation of no.13. These two windows face over the single storey rear extension of no.13 but 
in locations that would provide the potential to overlook the rear garden of no.13. The window 
design is to be the subject of a condition. It is considered that the overall extension would actually 
improve the privacy to the rear of no.13. 
 
Other matters  
 
The occupiers of no.9 have also raised concerns that the construction of the 2 storey side 
extension might cause damage to their driveway and that they will not permit access upon their 
land for the contractors. However these are not matters that can be lawfully considered by the 
Planning Committee as they are private matters. 
 
 
6  Conclusions 
 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 
 
- The proposed extensions would not be detrimental to the general character and appearance of 
the immediate area of Elmore Road or to the amenities of the occupiers of the two adjacent 
dwellings in accordance with policies CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy and policies PP2 
and PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD. 
 
7  Recommendation 
 
The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 

the date of this permission. 
 
Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended). 

  
 
C 2 The extensions hereby approved shall be implemented wholly in accordance with the 

following details: 
 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and proper planning 

 
C 3 The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the extensions 

hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building. 
 

drawing no.17.007/2A - floor layouts and elevations ●
drawing no.1890885 - site location plan ●

6 
 

32



Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
 
C 4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of the Town & Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification), no windows shall be inserted into the flank 
elevations of the permitted extensions other than:- 

 

 
The obscure glazing of these windows shall thereafter be retained and fixed shut. 
 
No other windows shall be inserted into any elevations of the extension unless expressly 
authorised by any future planning permission. 
 
Reason: In order to protect the amenity of the adjoining occupiers, in accordance with 
Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy and policy PP3 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD. 
 

  Copies to Councillors: Ed Murphy. Gul Nawaz. Sam Smith
 
 
  
 

a window in a door of the kitchen in the south facing elevation of the extension, 
which shall be obscure glazed to level 3 of the Pilkington obscured glazing standard.   

●

a window in the ground floor north facing elevation that shall be obscure glazed to 
the level 3 of the Pilkington obscured glazing standard and fixed shut 

●

a bedroom window in the existing first floor north facing elevation of no.11 that shall 
be obscure glazed to a height of 1.7m above floor level to level 3 of the Pilkington 
obscured glazing standard and fixed shut 

●

a landing window in the first floor north facing elevation of the existing dwelling that 
shall be obscure glazed to the level 3 of the Pilkington obscured glazing standard 
and fixed shut. 

●

7 
 

33



34



35



This page is intentionally left blank

36



 

Planning and EP Committee 30th January 2018                                               ITEM 5.3
 
Application Ref: 
 

17/02255/HHFUL  

Proposal: 
 

First floor front and side extension 

Site: 40 Farleigh Fields, Orton Wistow, Peterborough, PE2 6YB 
Applicant: 
 

Stuart Cleworth 

Called In by:  Cllr Stokes 
Call in reason: Overdevelopment of the site and overshadowing neighbours 
  
Agent: n/a 
Site visit: 
 

04.01.2018 

Case officer: Mr D Jolley 
Telephone No. 01733 453414 
E-Mail: 
 

david.jolley@peterborough.gov.uk 

Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and surroundings 
The site is a two storey detached dwelling of brick and tile construction in a residential cul de sac 
location. The dwelling has an attached double garage to the front of the property, open front 
garden and fully enclosed rear garden. The property has been extended to the rear with a small 
single storey extension. 
 
Proposal 
Permission is sought for a 1st floor front extension, to form en suite. 
 
2 Planning History 

 
Reference Proposal Decision Date 
08/00822/FUL Single storey rear extension. Demolition of 

double garage and erection of a first floor 
front extension and single storey extension 
linking to a new double garage  

Permitted  12/08/2008 

14/02039/HHFUL 

 
 

 
Single storey extension to rear - 
retrospective 

Refused  09/01/2015 

3 Planning Policy 

 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 

37



 

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable 
impact upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
PP03 - Impacts of New Development  
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
Orton Waterville Parish Council  
No comments received 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 4 
Total number of responses: 1 
Total number of objections: 1 
Total number in support: 0 
 
A single objection has been received in relation to the proposal stating;  
 
Gross over-development of the site and the loss of amenities to my property. 
 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main considerations are; 
 

• The impact of the proposal on the character of the area 
• The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings 

 
The impact of the proposal on the character of the area 
The proposal is for a small 1st floor front extension above a double garage, measuring 2.2 metres 
deep by 3.5 metres wide. The ridge height of the extension is 40cm below that of the host 
dwelling. This results in a slightly contrived appearance and it may have been preferable to not 
make this element subservient. However the overall appearance is acceptable and the dwelling is 
not prominent within the streetscene, being located at the bottom of a cul de sac. 
 
As a 1st floor extension the development does not result in the loss of any garden area. Officers 
do not agree with the objection stating gross overdevelopment of the plot. From the point of view 
of an increase in the footprint of the development. 

38



 

 
In light of the above it is considered that the proposal will not unacceptably harm the character of 
the area. 
 
The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings The 
application site has neighbouring dwellings located north, south and west. The dwelling is located 
a minimum of 20 metres from the dwelling located to the south and no windows will face south. In 
light of this separation and the favourable orientation it is considered that the proposal will have 
no impact upon the amenity of the occupiers located to south. 
 
The extension will be located approximately 9.0 metres from the neighbour to the west, this is an 
ample separation distance and the extension will not overshadow this neighbour of be 
overbearing. No windows face west and as such there shall be no loss of privacy. 
 
The neighbour to the north, 30 Farleigh Fields, has objected to the proposal on the grounds of 
overshadowing and overdevelopment of the plot. The boundary of the neighbouring property is 
located approximately 7.5 metres from the extension, at this distance it is considered that the 
small extension will not materially overshadow the neighbours amenity space or primary 
habitable rooms. The window, which is likely to be obscure glazed for privacy sake will not permit 
unacceptable overlooking of the amenity space or habitable rooms of 30 Farleigh Fields. The 
proposed extension won’t be visible from any windows from any windows of the neighbouring 
property. 
 
In light of the above it is considered that the proposal will have no impact upon the amenity of the 
occupiers of neighbouring dwellings. 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 
- The proposed extension by way of its design, appearance, size or form, will not unacceptably 
harm the character of the area or the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings; in 
accordance with policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy (DPD) 2011 and policies PP2 
and PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies (DPD) 2012. 
 
7 Recommendation 
 
The case officer recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED subject to the following 
conditions: 
  
 
C 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended). 
  
 
C 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with drawings; ES-06 and ES-08. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt. 

39



 

  
 
C 3 The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the extension 

hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building. 
  
 Reason: For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

Copies to Councillors: Kim Aitken. Gavin Elsey. June Stokes
  
  
 

40



  

  
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL  
PROTECTION COMMITTEE  
  

 

AGENDA ITEM  4 

1.30 pm 30 JANUARY 2018  PUBLIC REPORT  

  

Cabinet Members responsible:  Councillor Hiller - Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and 
Economic Development  
  

Contact Officer:  

Reporting Officer:  

Nick Harding (Head of Planning)  

Paul Smith (Compliance & S106 Manager)  

Tel. 454441 
Tel. 453468   

  
PLANNING COMPLIANCE QUARTERLY REPORT ON ACTIVITY & PERFORMANCE - JULY 
TO SEPTEMBER (Quarter 2) and OCTOBER TO DECEMBER (Quarter 3)   
  

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S  

FROM : Director of Growth and Regeneration   Deadline date : January 2018  
  

That Committee notes past performance and outcomes.  

  
1. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  
  

It is useful for Committee to look at the Planning Service’s planning compliance 
performance and activity and identify if there are any lessons to be learnt from the actions 
taken. This will help inform future decisions and potentially reduce costs. This report is 
presented under the terms of the Council’s constitution Part 3, delegations section 2 para 
2.5.1.4.  

  
2. TIMESCALE.  
  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan?  

NO  If Yes, date for relevant 
Cabinet Meeting  

n/a  

  
3. MAIN BODY OF REPORT  

  
Quarter 2 Outcomes  

3.1     In the second quarter of 2017/18 we received a total of 122 service requests (we usually 
average 150 cases per quarter). Taking into account the number of cases closed over the 
period (102 cases) as at 30 September 2017 we had 128 live cases being investigated / in 
the process of being resolved. The Technical Services Team acknowledged 96% of new 
service requests within 3 working days this quarter, well above the target of 80%. 97% of 
initial site visits were made within 7 days of the service request being received, again well 
above the 80% target. A total of 4 enforcement notices were issued in the quarter. No 
enforcement notices fell due to be complied with in the quarter. 1 other enforcement notice 
was complied with in the quarter. There were no enforcement notices issued in the previous 
quarter that have not been complied with on time.  
  

3.2 No Court Action requests in relation to enforcement cases were made this quarter.  
  

3.3 No prosecutions have been sought this quarter either.   

41

AAQ424
Rectangle

AAQ424_1
Typewritten Text
6



  
  
Quarter 3 Outcomes  

3.4 In the third quarter of 2017/18 we received a total of 118 service requests (we usually  
average 150 cases per quarter). Taking into account the number of cases closed over the 
period (93 cases) as at 31st December 2017 we had 191 live cases being investigated / in 
the process of being resolved. The Technical Services Team acknowledged 98% of new 
service requests within 3 working days this quarter, well above the target of 80%. 91% of 
initial site visits were made within 7 days of the service request being received, again well 
above the 80% target. A total of 4 enforcement notices were issued in the quarter. 1 
enforcement notice fell due within the quarter and has been complied with. 1 other notice 
was complied with in the quarter. There were no enforcement notices issued in the previous 
quarter that have not been complied with on time.  
  

3.5 No Court Action requests in relation to enforcement cases were made this quarter.  
  

3.6 No prosecutions have been sought this quarter either.   
  
3.7 Please see the attached Appendix 1 (Quarter 2) and Appendix 2 (Quarter 3) for further 

details of the Planning Compliance Team Quarterly Report on Activity & Performance.  
  
4. IMPLICATIONS  

  
4.1       Legal Implications – There are no legal implications relating to this report on performance, 

although the enforcement process itself must have due regard to legal considerations and 
requirements.  

  
Financial Implications – This report itself does not have any financial implications  
  
Human Rights Act – This report itself has no human rights implications but the 

enforcement process has due regard to human rights issues.  

  
Human Resources – This report itself has no human resources implications.   

  
ICT – This report itself has no ICT implications.   

  
Property – This report itself has no Property implications.  

  
  Contract Services – This report itself has no Contract Services implications.    

  
Equality & Diversity – This report itself has no Equality and Diversity Implications, 

although the enforcement process has due regard to such considerations.  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

42



  
  
  
  
APPENDIX 1 (Quarter 2)  
  
INFORMATION ITEM: PLANNING COMPLIANCE TEAM QUARTERLY REPORT ON ACTIVITY 
& PERFORMANCE – (July to Sept 2017)  
  
Description  No.  Comments  

Complaints Received  122  Down from 130. The number of new cases  
has fallen by 8.   

Complaints Resolved 
(cases closed as % of 
cases received)  

102  Down from 161. The number of cases closed 
has fallen by 59.  

Complaints on 
Hand/Pending  

128/92  Cases on hand fallen by 17 and cases 
pending have fallen by 34.  

      

Reasons Cases 
Closed  

No  Comment  

Development de minimis  5  Up 2 from last quarter  

Development older than 
four years  

3  Down 3 from last quarter  

Breach confirmed - 
action not authorised  

2  Down 1 from last quarter  

No breach found  40  Down 37 from last quarter  

Permitted development  8  Down 4 from last quarter  

Permission granted  10  Down 8 from last quarter  

Breach remedied  25  Down 5 from last quarter  

Not expedient  1  Up 1 from last quarter  

Would Grant Planning 
Permission  

6  Up 1 from last quarter  

Monitoring over 8 weeks  2  Up 2 from last quarter  

Total Closed  102  Down 59 from last quarter  

      

Enforcement Notices Served  

Stop  Notice  1  17/00259/ENFOTH Land At English Drove 
Thorney - hardcore and concrete to form a 
hardstanding brought onto the land and laid  

Enforcement Notice  1  17/00259/ENFOTH Land At English Drove 
Thorney - hardcore brought onto agricultural 
land to create a temporary road surface. 
Cement also brought onto land and mixed 
with concrete to create two hardstandings  

Operational  
Development Notice  

1  17/00025/ENFOTH 64 Westgate - detached 
outbuilding  

Change of Use Notice  1  16/00384/ENFOTH Land At Montagu Road  
Adjacent To 129 And 131 Walton 
Unauthorised development -  2 shipping 
containers  

Total Notices Served  4  Up 1 from last quarter  

43



  
Enforcement Notices Due and Complied With in the Quarter  

Type  Due  Comment  

Total Notices 
Complied with  

0  Down 2 from last quarter  

  
  
Other Enforcement Notices Complied With in the Quarter  

Type  Due  Comment  

Operational  
Development Notice  

1  16/00118/ENFEXT 1116 Bourges Boulevard  
Millfield (Due: 18/01/2017) - Rear extension  

Total Notices Complied 
with  

1  Down 5 from last quarter  

  
Enforcement Notices Due but Not Complied Within the Quarter  

Site  Date Due  Comments  

Total   0  Same as last quarter  
  
Other Notable Outcomes    

13/00269/ENFCOU  
Caravans at Land South East 
Of Nine Bridges Glinton  

Enforcement action pending until appeal against 2nd 
refusal of permission has been decided  

16/00069/ENFMON. Parking 
provision at 142 Cobden 
Avenue, Millfield  
Peterborough, PE1 2NU  

Owner has issued a notice to quit on his tenant and will 
remedy breaches when he has possession of the 
property  

    
  
Court Action Agreed    

Failure to comply with  
enforcement notice. Summons 
Issued  

    

Total  0 No change from last quarter  

Prosecutions    

Total  0 No change from last quarter  
  
Performance Measures    

  Description  % / 
Time  

Comments  

  % of cases closed within 8 weeks if No 
Breach found.  

98  Up 17%  
Target of 80%  

  Average time (weeks) to resolve all cases 
closed last quarter.  

10  Down 4 weeks No 
Target  

LPI  % of complaints acknowledged within 3 
working days.  

96  Down 1%  
Target of 80%  

LPI  % of site inspections carried out within 7 
days of acknowledgement.  

97  Same as last 
quarter Target 
of 80%  

44



  
  
Notable Cases July to September 2017  

Reference  Site Address  Breach Type  Date 
Closed  

Reason Closed  Source  

17/00267/ENFFLA  687 Lincoln  
Road  
Peterborough 
PE1 3HD   

Conversion to flats 27/07/2017 Breach confirmed - 
action not 
authorised  

HiMO No harm 
caused no 
improvements 
possible  

17/00131/ENFCO 
U  

41A Park Road  
Peterborough 
PE1 2TH   

Change of use 
from from mixed 
use as shop and  

27/07/2017 Breach confirmed - 
action not 
authorised  

New use has 
no more 
impact on the  

 

  flat to beauty 
parlour and flat   

  neighbours & 
area than 
approved use 
as beauty 
parlour  

17/00258/ENFREP  8 Wimborne  
Drive  
Dogsthorpe  
Peterborough  
PE1 4RR   

Car repairs  03/07/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00313/ENFREP  80 Larch Grove  
Dogsthorpe  
Peterborough  
PE1 4JY   

Car repairs  20/07/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00314/ENFOTH  Woodgate Farm 
3 Woodgate  
Lane Maxey  
Peterborough 
PE6 9ED   

Unauthorised 
development  

24/07/2017 Would Grant  
Planning  
Permission  

Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00312/ENFBCN  Land To The  
West Of  
Williams Close  
Newborough  
Peterborough   

Breach of condition 27/07/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00321/ENFREP  84 Sycamore  
Avenue  
Dogsthorpe  
Peterborough  
PE1 4JU   

Car repairs  28/07/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00341/ENFEXT  20 Exeter Road  
Millfield  
Peterborough 
PE1 3QN   

Extension  11/08/2017 Development de 
minimis  

Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00286/ENFAD  42 Broadway  
Peterborough 
PE1 1RS   

Advert  15/08/2017 Breach remedied  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00343/ENFACC  20 Peakirk  
Road Glinton  
Peterborough  
PE6 7LT   

Not in accordance 
with a permission  

16/08/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

45



17/00347/ENFBUS  72 Reeves Way  
Eastfield  
Peterborough 
PE1 5LG   

Business from 
home  

16/08/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00261/ENFCO 
U  

Baltia Stores  
148 - 150  
Huntly Grove  
Peterborough 
PE1 2QN   

Change of use  18/08/2017 Breach remedied  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00350/ENFACC  44 Priory Road 
West Town  
Peterborough 
PE3 9ED   

Not in accordance 
with a permission  

21/08/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00372/ENFHM 
O  

108  
Brookfurlong  
Ravensthorpe  
Peterborough 
PE3 7LQ   

House in multiple 
occupation  

15/09/2017 No breach found  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00382/ENFBCN  Marketstede  
Hampton  
Hargate  
Peterborough   

Breach of condition 27/09/2017 Breach remedied  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00018/ENFREP  129 Paynels  
Orton Goldhay  
Peterborough  
PE2 5QP   

Car repairs  27/09/2017 Breach remedied  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

17/00382/ENFBCN  Marketstede  
Hampton  
Hargate  
Peterborough   

Breach of condition 27/09/2017 Breach remedied  Complainant  
CLLR,  
PARISH or MP 

16/00012/ENFBCN  213 Clarence  
Road  
Millfield  
Peterborough  
PE1 2LF  
  

Breach of condition 07/07/2017 Not expedient  Notice Issued  

16/00118/ENFEXT  1116 Bourges  
Boulevard  
Millfield  
Peterborough  
PE1 2AW  
  

Extension  11/07/2017 Would Grant  
Planning  
Permission  

Notice Issued  

16/00118/ENFEXT  1116 Bourges  
Boulevard  
Millfield  
Peterborough  
PE1 2AW  
  

Extension  11/07/2017 Would Grant  
Planning  
Permission  

Notice Issued  

  

  
  
  
  

46



  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
APPENDIX 2 (Quarter 3)  
  
INFORMATION ITEM: PLANNING COMPLIANCE TEAM QUARTERLY REPORT ON ACTIVITY 
& PERFORMANCE – (Oct to Dec 2017)  
  
Description  No.  Comments  
Complaints Received  118  The number of new cases has fallen by 4   

from 122  
Complaints Resolved 
(cases closed as % of 
cases received)  

93  The number of cases closed has fallen by 9 
from 102  

Complaints on 
Hand/Pending  

191/141  Cases on hand risen by 63 from 128 and 
cases pending have risen by 49 from 92  

      
Reasons Cases 
Closed  

No  Comment  

Development de minimis  3  Down 2 from last quarter  
Development older than 
four years  

2  Down 1 from last quarter  

Breach confirmed - 
action not authorised  

3  Up 1 from last quarter  

No breach found  30  Down 10 from last quarter  
No development 
established  

1  Up 1 from last quarter  

Permitted development  7  Down 1 from last quarter  
Permission granted  6  Down 4 from last quarter  
Breach remedied  25  Same as last quarter  
Not expedient  3  Up 2 from last quarter  
Breach mitigated  1  Up 1 from last quarter  
Warning issued  1  Up 1 from last quarter  
Monitoring iver 8 weeks  1  Down 1 from last quarter  
Would Grant Planning 
Permission  

10  Up 4 from last quarter  

Total Closed  93  Down 9 from last quarter  
      
Enforcement Notices Served  
Operational  
Development Notice  

1  15/00325/ENFGAR 108 Sycamore Avenue  
Dogsthorpe - buildings in garden  

47



Planning Contravention 
Notice  

2  17/00281/ENFBUS The Willows Willow 
Drove Newborough Fen - business from 
home  
17/00458/ENFBCN New Range Riding 
School Crowland Road Eye - breach of 
condition  

Change of Use Notice  1  17/00157/ENFCOU 89 Fengate - change of 
use  

Total Notices Served  4  Same as last quarter  
  

Enforcement Notices Due and Complied With in the Quarter  

Type  Due  Comment  

Total Notices Complied 
with  

1  16/00384/ENFOTH Land At Montagu Road  
Adjacent To 129 And 131 Walton  
Peterborough (Due: 14/11/2017) - change of 
use two shipping containers  

  
Other Enforcement Notices Complied With in the Quarter  

Type  Due  Comment  

Change of Use Notice  1  15/00307/ENFOTH Compass Barn Main 
Street Ufford Stamford PE9 3BH  (Due: 
27/06/2017) - skateboard ramp  

Total Notices 
Complied with  

1  Same as last quarter  

  
Enforcement Notices Due but Not Complied Within the Quarter  

Site  Date Due  Comments  

Total   0  Same as last quarter  
  
Other Notable Outcomes    

13/00269/ENFCOU  
Caravans at Land South East 
Of Nine Bridges Glinton  

Enforcement action pending until Health and Welfare 
assessment completed and a new site becomes 
available  

    

    
  
Court Action Agreed    

Failure to comply with  
enforcement notice. Summons 
Issued  

    

Total  0 No change from last quarter  

Prosecutions    

Total  0 No change from last quarter  
  
Performance Measures    

  Description  % / 
Time  

Comments  

48



  % of cases closed within 8 weeks if No 
Breach found.  

89  Down 9%  
Target of 80%  

  Average time (weeks) to resolve all cases 
closed last quarter.  

9  Down 1 week No 
Target  

LPI  % of complaints acknowledged within 3 
working days.  

98  Up 2%  
Target of 80%  

LPI  % of site inspections carried out within 7 
days of acknowledgement.  

91  Down 6%  
Target of 80%  

  
  
Notable Cases October to December 2017  

Reference  Site Address  Breach 
Type  

Date 
Closed  

Reason 
Closed  

Source  

17/00413/ENFEXT  41 Harris  
Street Millfield  
Peterborough  
PE1 2LY   

Extension  19/10/2017 Breach 
confirmed - 
action not 
authorised  

Ground floor 
bathroom 
extension would 
not need PP if 
the materials 
had matched but 
will be 
acceptable  

 
     when rendered 

and painted  

17/00359/ENFBCN  Land To The  
West Of  
Williams Close  
Newborough  
Peterborough   

Breach of 
condition. 
Use of pile 
driver 
outside 
permitted 
times  

30/10/2017 Breach 
confirmed - 
action not 
authorised  

Action not 
authorised as  
the piling has 
been completed 

17/00480/ENFFLA  128 Gladstone  
Street Millfield  
Peterborough 
PE1 2BL   

Conversion 
of 2 flats to 
3 flats  

23/11/2017 Breach 
confirmed - 
action not 
authorised  

Action not 
authorised as 
causes no harm 

17/00360/ENFGAR  27-29  
Dogsthorpe  
Road  
Peterborough  
PE1 3AD   

Building in 
garden  

30/10/2017 Monitoring/8 
weeks  

The complainant 
thought owner 
was erecting an 
outbuilding 
refused at 
Appeal but 
laying a PD 
patio  

16/00384/ENFOTH  Land At  
Montagu Road  
Adjacent To  
129 And 131  
Walton  
Peterborough   

Unauthoris 
ed  
developme 
nt  

15/12/2017 Breach 
remedied  

Appeal against 
refusal  

17/00423/ENFBCN  7 Walnut Mews 
Peterborough 
PE3 6GJ   

Breach of 
condition  

11/10/2017 No breach 
found  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

49



17/00420/ENFENC  16-18  
Grimshaw 
Road  
Peterborough 
PE1 4ET   

Wall/fence  11/10/2017 No breach 
found  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

15/00307/ENFOTH  Compass Barn  
Main Street 
Ufford  
Stamford PE9  
3BH   

Unauthoris 
ed  
developme 
nt  

13/10/2017 Breach 
remedied and 
notice complied 
with  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00368/ENFBUS  30 Gretton  
Close Orton  
Longueville  
Peterborough  
PE2 7WD   

Business 
from home  

06/11/2017 Breach 
remedied  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00399/ENFAD  Bounce 1  
Wedgwood  
Way Bretton  
Peterborough  
PE3 8AY   

Advert  07/11/2017 Breach 
remedied  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00443/ENFAD  110 Alma  
Road Millfield  
Peterborough  
PE1 3AW   

Advert  20/11/2017 Breach 
remedied  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00395/ENFCAR  33 Muswell  
Road West  
Town  
Peterborough 
PE3 9EF   

Car sales  24/11/2017 No breach 
found  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00506/ENFGAR  38 Myrtle  
Avenue  
Dogsthorpe  
Peterborough 
PE1 4LR   

Building in 
garden  

06/12/2017 Would Grant  
Planning  
Permission  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00182/ENFOTH  Jack Hunt  
School  
Bradwell Road  
Netherton  
Peterborough 
PE3 9PY   

Unauthoris 
ed  
developme 
nt  

07/12/2017 Breach 
remedied  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00456/ENFCOU  20 Broadway 
Gardens  
Peterborough 
PE1 4DU   

Change of 
use  

07/12/2017 No breach 
found  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

17/00469/ENFHRD  Land South Of  
A47 And East  
Of Great North  
Road  
Wansford  
Peterborough   

Hardstandi 
ng  

15/12/2017 No 
development 
established  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

50



17/00418/ENFOTH  The Crab And  
Winkle 3  
Loxley Centre  
Lincoln Road  
Peterborough  
PE4 5BW   

Unauthoris 
ed 
developme 
nt  

15/12/2017 Breach 
mitigated  

Complainant 
CLLR, PARISH 
or MP  

16/00384/ENFOTH  Land At  
Montagu Road  
Adjacent To  
129 And 131 
Walton  
Peterborough  
  
  

Unauthoris 
ed  
developme 
nt shipping 
containers 
in garage 
court  

15/12/2017 Breach 
remedied 
containers 
removed and 
notice complied 
wiith  

Notice Issued  

  
  

51



This page is intentionally left blank

52


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 19 December 2017
	5.1 17/02105/HHFUL - Vine Cottage, Bainton Green Road, Ashton, Stamford.
	17 02105 HHFUL Final Committee Report

	5.2 17/01906/HHFUL - 11 Elmore Road, Netherton, Peterborough PE3 9PS.
	Final 11 Elmore (1)

	5.3 17/02255/HHFUL - 40 Farleigh Fields, Orton Wistow, Peterborough PE2 6YB.
	Final Report 17-02255-HHFUL

	6 Quarterly Compliance Report



